BEVERLY IN 1700. NO. b.

BY BIDNEY PERLEY.

Tae territory of Beverly included in this section was
taken up by the early settlers very slowly as much of the
land was rocky and swampy and undesirable for farming
purposes. ‘The length from the Wenbam town line to the
sen, north and south, is about two and three-fourth miles,
and its width from Turtle hill to the Wenham line about
one mile, east and west.

The designation of C.u.su Ann Side included this part
of Beverly as late as 1670,

The tidal water bounding this section on the south
has been generally called the sea ; and Mackerel cove has
been so known since 1636,

The sandy shore at the foot of Brackenbury lane was
called Pateh's beach as early as 1850.

Mingo beach was so called as early as 1804. The name
was occasioned by the residence of Robin Mingo upon
the headland at its western end, a triangular lot having

been given him by the town, from 1728 to his death in
1748, at the age of eighty-seven. He was a colored slave
of Thomas Woodbury. He married Deborah Tailer, an
Indian slave, in 1707. She survived him, and died in
1759.

Witch lane, which leads northerly into the woods from
Hale street, a few rods westerly of Mingo's humble hab-
itation, has been so designated since 1805 at least. This
pusses on the weaterly side of  Flora's swamp,” a name
which was probably derived from some association with
Flora, one of the negro slaves of that name in this local-
ity. The swamp was so called as early as 1834

The highland next westerly of Mingo's home, between
Hale street and the shors, was called “ The Park ™ as
early as 1765, and also Burying Point in 1804,
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The point of land at the foot of Prince street was called
Ober's Point in 1864,

There are two considerable elevations in this section.
One of them, Bald hill, was 8o called as sarly as 1662 ;
and the other, Long hill, has been known by that name
since 1662 at least.

Sawyer’s plain was so called as early as 1669,

Thissell's brook was called, near Standley street, * y*
old houses brook™ in 1707 ; and below Hale street Mack-
erel Cove creek in 1648 ; the river in 1764 ; the river
leading to River Head bridge in 1801; and the brook or
stream known as Thissell's river in 1901.

Gmvelly brook was so ealled in 1782,

The oldest highway in this region is, of course, Hale
street, the original road to Cape Aunn. It was there in
the earliest settlement; and was called the country road
in 1688 : the road that leads to Manchester in 1795 ; and
was named Hale street in 1838. This road was straight-
ened, as shown on the map, about 1840, The bridge
over Thissell's brook, near Chapman's corner, was first
ordered to be made by Salem as a foot bridge in February,
1645-6, by the Salem Quarterly Court. It had not been
made three years later, when Gloucester was presented
for want of a bridge at this broock. One was eventually
constructed, however. It was ecalled River Head bridge
in 1801 ; and Thissell’s bridge in 1838.

Bmkmhur; lane was laid out by the selectmen of
Beverly March 18, 1678-9, and described in the records as

a Cart high way from the water side through Goodman Bracken-
berries farme unto the Drift way' afforesaid and from thence to the
;ﬁ that rnns by the north lida of bald hill as the way goes tha

way to bé two pole wide.

That part of this layout between Hale and East Lothrop
streets was altered and abandoned in 1682, Brackenbury
lane was called a town highway in 1707 ; the highway
which leads to the beach in 1765; a town way leading
down to Patch’s beach in 1791 ; Pateh’s lane in lﬂ'ﬂl
and Brackenbury street in 1850,

"East Lothrop stroet.
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Prinee street was called Point lane in 1834 ; and has
been known as Prinee street since 1864,

Boyles street was laid out by a committee of the town
Nov. 14, 1682, as follows :— 3

Ata meting of the felect men the 21 of Aprell 1686 The Committes
then made a Return of & town high way that they the fid Commit-
tes lald out as foloweth: wee who were chofen by the town of bev-
erly ns a Oommitéee to Iny ouk fuch high ways as may be for the
Oonveinancy of the town: hane on the 1dth of the mo; 1682
taken a (nrvaie of a high way that was mm“‘}rq laid ont throogh'
gondman Brackenberys flarm  wee now fea canfe to alter the way
and to lay it ont in & nother place which is to fay from a drift way
which Runs from Lmae woodberys to a brook that Runs to Nicholas
woodberies mill from that drift ovar the hill down to Joonthan
Boills his hounfe as the way is now bonnded wvnto the water iide by
Inzign patochis houfa which is to fay two pole wide whieh way is
ginen by faid Brackenbery for the nfe of the town for ever
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Boyles street was called the town way leading to Mack-
erel cove in 1682 ; the road leading from Mackerel cove
to Montserat in 1821 ; the hig]mny leading to Mount
Serat in 1833 ; and Bovles street since 1850,

That part of Cole street lying eastward of John Wil-
liams' house was laid out by a committee of the town
April 1, 1686, according to the following record :—

wee whofe names are vnder written have on the d frft day of
Aprell 88 Laid out a high way tow pole wide through the land Com-
monly Known by the name of fnwyers plain that is to fay the
begina near the fouth welt Corner of John willlams his howfa m
fo Ruus throngh the plain betwen the land of Lisustenont thorn-
dikes and the land of Gm? ftandly and the land of Robert bradford
vntell it comes to the land of william Cleaus vpon the northerly
fide of Grauillia Rige thmuﬁh faid Cleens his land and fo to the
bigh way near Richard pateh his houfe. .

This was called ye highway in 1657 ; and ye town high.
way in 1707,

Standley street, from Thomas Patch's house to Bald
hill, was originated in 1688, It was laid out two rods
wide, It was called ye town way in 1707 ; the road lead-
ing from Mackerel cove to Bald hill in 1782; the road
leading from Bald hill over Boyles hill so called in 1798 ;
the highway that leads from Patel’s brook to Taylor's in
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1795 ; the highway near the house of James Patch in
1801 ; and Standley street in 1845.

Hull street was so called in 1845,

Essex street was so called in 1845,

Grover street was laid out March 18, 1678-9, and de-
scribed as follows :—

a drift way begininge between Iohn Dodges senior and Rice Ed-
wards through the nf:dn-d pastore and soe Boutherly into the
Common-and sos through the Land of Tho: Baker into the high way
by bald hill and soe throngh the Land of Georg Hull into the Qom-
mon which way is to be two pole wide.

It was called the town highway in 1698 ; ye road y* was
laid out to Beverly commons, 1740; Grover's lane in
1801 ; the eross road in 1808 ; the highway leading by
the house formerly William Taylor's in 1840 ; and Grover
street since 1865,

Off Grover street to the east there is an old town way
which was there in 1741 at least.

Relative to the northern portion of this part of Beverly,
the following letter, published in the Salem Register, in
its issue of April 80, 1846, is interesting :—

Mesers. Editers :—Nearly a year sinee, the Connty Commissioners
widened and straightensd the highway in Wenham and Beverly
ealled “‘Hull street.” A portion of the owners of land npon the
route, bﬁ:g dissatisfied with the dl.ml&u: awarded by the Commis-
sioners, had Mr. Sheriff Bprague over ground on Monday, with
twelve v men and troe," to review that award, who, after
hearing the petitioners by their counsel, N, J, Lord, Esq., and the
County by A. Hontington, Esq., gave their verdict. . . .

Thers are several localities in this vicinity quite sopgestive of
incident. The venerable name of Hull, from which the street takes
its title, conmected, as It §a, not only with the descendants of
that name, bot alsa with the early family of Lovett and
with that of the sarliest William Raymond, suggests many mat-
ters of genealogical interest. This part of our ancient town-
ship is denominated “Mont Serat;” bot from what caose It
derives that titls is not certainly known., There is a sort of private
way leading from this street towards the woods callad “*Middle-
town,” npon which are now standing the foundations of an ancient
house and barn, formerly the residence of -‘Randall Preston,” the

t grandfathar of Hon. HRobert Hantoul, senior. The wife of
ndall Preston was Sesanna Stone; and in later years the place
was inhabited by & family by the name of Stone (probably a connex-
jon of this Susanna), one of whom, the late Rev. {John?) Stone, was
a Baptist clergyman in New Boston, N. H., and died ¢ within
twenty years past, atan advanced age. The old Corning house,



102 BEVERLY 1IN 1700. xo. &

now the property of Mr. James Dunn, presents guite & vensrable
appearance, with its upper story jutting out over the lower part of

@ house, There are also some curious relics of rude painting and
carving of the olden time with the house. “BHald Hill" is in this
immediate vicinlty, overlooking a very extensive and beantiful
prospect. Althongh moch of the land in this part of the town pre-
sents rather n barren appearance, yet, formerly, this was among our
ll-uhutﬁriqulwm] territory—and now, with the increased facilities
furnigshed by better roads, and with the will and energy of her
young men applied to her improvement, Mont Serat may yet sor-
prise the most sanguine; for, with such appliances, it cannot be
otherwise than that territory, containing within itself such rich
meadows and bogs as hers aboand, muast ultimately be greatly sd-
vanced, “Grover street,” leading from “Hull strest™ to “Dodge’s
Row," although it now contains but two dwelling honses, former]
had several u%un its line. Old people will tell you of the “Oodis,™
“‘Larcom,” ‘‘Cole,” and other houses now among the missing.
The Grover family, from which this street takes its name, wers
among the earliest settlers; and altho' the name is extinet here, yet
thors are many descandants in other parts of Baverly. Tradition says
that one of the last of the name, for some deed of darkness he had
done, was doomed to be haunted bl-_r troops of black cats, whom he
was obliged to exorcise by spend most of his nights in psalm
singing, which his peculiar style led hin to employ to such ad-
vantage as to silence and sobdoe all the caterwauling of his sable
tormentors. The last that was seen of thess supposed agents of
tha othar world was upon the night of his decease, when they com-
plately eovered his coffin; and npon being disturbed, all made their
exit up the chimney, bearing, as was supposed, the spirit of their
wictim with them, but leaving his corpse nnharmed behind. Thers
was also an sccentric genius by the name of Fairfiald, formerly re-
siding on this street. who believed in all kinds of witcheraft and
suparstition, and practised various arts of that character himself,
Among other things, he iurt by him the hand taken from the corpse
of a first born male ehild, in which he contended he counld place a
light of the most brilllant character and carry it anywhere, un
« calved by any one except himsslf. Thers wers also several 1
and part Indian familles that formerly lived in this vicinity, of
whom some marvellons stories are told,

Beverly, April 28, 15848,

Benjamin Patch House. This lot of land was probably
granted by the town of Salem to Richard Brackenbury,
who apparently conveyed it to his son-in-law John Pateh.
This was probably the homestead of Mr. Brackenbury.
Mr, Patch was a husbandman, and lived here. He died
in 1694 ; and by agreement partition of his real estate
was made Nov. 11, 1695, the widow Elizabeth Pateh be-
ing assigned the homestead for her life, and then the
house, barn, orchard and land “on the south side of the
country road that goeth between Salem Ferry and Man-
chester called the homestead " was released to his son
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Benjamin Patch. John Pateh’s widow died Jan. 15,
1715. Benjamin Patch lived here, and was a husband-
man. He died in June, 1730; having in his will devised
the house, barn and land to his wife Susanna for her life.
How much longer the house stood is unknown.

Mary Pateh Lot. This lot of land was early the prop-
erty of John Lovett, ar,, of Beverly. He died Nov. 5,
1686, having in his will devised it to his daughter Mary,
wife of Thomas Patch of Beverly, yeoman. She owned
it in 1700.

Benjamin Pateh Lot. This lot of land belonged to
Benjamin Patch of Beverly, husbandman, in 1700.

Richard Thissell Lot. This lot of land was granted to
Jeffrey Massey by the town of Salem in or before 1638 ;
and Jeffrey Thissell died possessed of it in the spring of
1676. In his will he devised it to his son Richard This-
sell's son Jeffrey Thissell, who was then only three years
of age. The boy apparently died young, and his father
inherited it from him. Richard Thissell owned it in1700,

Elizabeth Walker House. This tract of land was proba-
bly granted to William Woodbery, the elder, of Salem,
weaver, by the town of Salem Oect. 17, 1638. He bailt
a bouse thereon, and lived there. He had apparently con-
veyed the eastern part of it to Nicholas Woodbery, sr.,
of Beverly, yeoman, in or before Sept. 28, 1670, when he
conveyed to the latter “my now dwelling house 1 now
live in” and the remainder of the lot! The whole lot
of land with the house was apparently reconveyed to him
before his decease. He died Jan. 29, 1676-7, having in
his will devised the house and land to his wife Elizabeth.
She married, secondly, John Walker March 12, 16789 ;
and she died, his widow, in 1718. How long the house
stood is unknown to the writer.

Robert Bradford Lot. This lot of land was owned by
Robert Bradford in 1670 and 1700,

Elizabeth Walker Lot. This lot of land was conveyed by
William Woodbery, the elder, of Beverly, weaver, to
Nicholas Woodbery, sr,, of Beverly, yeoman, Sept. 23,
1670 ;! and was, perhaps, reconveyed to said grantor be-

'Essex Reglstry of Doeds, book 3, leaf 110.
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fore the death of the latter, which occurred Jan. 29,
1676-7. It probably then went to his widow Elizabeth,
who married, secondly, John Walker in 1678-9, and died
in 1718.

John Lovett Lot. This lot of land belonged to John
Lovett in 1870, He died possessed of it Nowv, 5, 1686 ;
and in his will devised it to his daughter Abigail Rendall.
She owned it in 1700.

Jonathan Biles House. This tract of land early belonged
to John Patch of Beverly, husband man,

That part of the lot lying northwesterly of the northern
dashes was conveyed by Richard Brackenbury of Bever.
ly, yeoman, to John Patch, sr., of Beverly, yeoman, Sept.
1, 1682 3 und Mr. Patch conveved it to his son-in-law
Jonathan Biles of Beverly, carpenter, in or before 1688,

That part of the lot lying between the dashes was con-
veyed by Mr. Pateh to Mr. Biles, probably in 1674, and
Mr. Biles built & honse therson, in which he lived. In
consideration of love, he conveyed his homestead, this
hounse, barn and land, to his sop Nicholas Biles April 10,
17182 Nicholag Biles died at Canso June 22, 1725, at
the age of thirty-one. He left no issue, and his father
was his beir. Mr. Biles, who was now a yeoman, con-
veyed the same homestead, house, barn and land, to his
son Richard Biles of Gloucester, husbandman, Sept. 10,
17262 Richard Biles came here and lived. For two
pounds and thirteen shillings, he conveyed to his grandson
William Clarke of Beverly, mariner, part of the dwelling
house and land Mareh 18, 1765.4

Three acres of that part of this lot lying sontheasterly
of the southern dashes was given by Mr. Patch to his
daunghter Elizabeth, wife of Jonathan Biles, in or before
1683 ; and, for twenty-six pounds and five shillings, the
rest of it was conveyed by Mr. Patch to Mr. Biles Nov.
30, 16835

"Easax Registry of Deads, book 6, leaf 83,
*Epsox Registry of Deeds, book 55, leaf 160,
*Essex Begistry of Deeds, book 46, leaf 23,
‘Essex Registry of Deeds, book 121, leaf 239,
"Essex Registry of Deeds, book 7, leaf T2,
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The half acre of land where the mill stood originally
belonged to Mr, Pateh; and he probably conveyed it to
Nicholas Woodbery of Beverly, who erected therson a
corn mill in or before 1673. For forty-five pounds, Mr.
Woodbury conveyed the mill and land to Jonathan Biles
April 7, 1683 ;! and in the same deed conveyed to him a
way over grantor’s land for people to go to the mill. How
much longer the mill existed is unknown to the writer,

The house upon this lot probably stood for many years
afterwards.

Jonathan Biles Lot. Ens. John Patch of Beverly,
husbandman, died in 1694, intestate. This lot of land
«on the hill behind the now dwelling house of Jonathan
Biles ™ was a part of his estate. In the division of his
renl estate, Nov. 11, 1695, this lot of rocky land wos as-
signed to his son-in-law Jonathan Biles in right of his
wife Elizabeth ; and he owned it in 1700,

Estate of John Pateh Lot. This lot of meadow land
was called “ ye old honse meadow,” and belonged to John
Patch, sr, in 1683. Ens. John Patch died, possessed of
it, in 1684 ; and it belonged to his estate in 1700,

Richard Patch Lot. Richard Brackenbury of Beverly,
for four pounds, conveyed this lot of land to his grand-
gson Richard Patch of Beverly, yeoman, Feb. 14, 16832
It was called the property of Richard Patch in 1677, and
he had probably had possession of it before that date. He
probably lived upon the lot in 1695; and it belonged to
him in 1700.

Thomas Woeodbury Lot. This lot of land probably be-
longed to Thomas Woodbury in 1700.

Estate of Richard Brackenbury Lot. This lot of land
belonged to the estate of Richard Brackenbury in 1700.

William Cleaves Lot. John Patch of Beverly conveyed
this lot of land to Samuel Knowlton of Ipswich, husband-
man, July 1, 1671;% and Mr. Knowlton conveyed it to
George Hull of Beverly, cooper, Nov. 27, 1670% Mr.

'Hssex Registry of Deads, book 7, leaf T3,
ifssex Hegistry of Deads, book 10, leaf 14,
TEssex Registry of Deads, boolk 0, leaf 178,
Essex Registry of Deeds, book T, leaf 8,
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Hull conveyed it to William Cleaves of Beverly, seaman,
the next day  and Mr. Cleaves probably owned it in
1700,

George Hull Lot. John Patch of Beverly conveyed
this lot of land to Samuel Knowlton of Ipswich, husband-
man, July 1,1671 2 and Mr. Knowlton conveyed it to
George Hull of Beverly, cooper, Nov. 27, 1679.! Mr. Hull
probably owned it in 1700,

John Bennett Lot. John Patch of Beverly, yeoman,
owned this lot of land in 1671 : and, for twenty nds,
conveyed it to John Bennett of Beverly, weaver, 5:: 28,
16772 Mr. Bennett apparently owned it in 1700,

John Pateh Lot. John Patch of Beverly, hushandman,
owned this lot in 1677. He died in 1694; and it ap-
parently belonged to his estate in 1700,

Richard Pateh Lot. This lot of land was located at the
place called * the old houses,” and it was probably the
property of John Pateh of Beverly, husbandman, who
died in 1694. In the division of his estate, Nov. 11, 1695,
it was assigned to his son Richard Patch of Beverly, hus-
bandman, who owned it in 1700,

Thomas Pateh Howse. That part of this tract of land
lying northerly of the dashes was probably granted
by the town of Salem, Nov. 18, 1661, as follows :—

Granted to Will Mappor fos moeh lande as the Inhabitants on
Cape Ann (ide shalbe Willinge to give out of the Comon on the Ealt
fide of Bafs Riuer.

William Mapes conveyed it to Daniel Romball of Salem,
smith, for the purpose of sale by him, Sept. 20, 1662
and Mr. Rumball conveyed it to Robert Hibbert Nov. 18,
1664.) Apparently Mr. Hibbert conveyed it to Nicholas
Pateh before 1671,

That part of the lot lying southwesterly of the dashes
;ﬁ“ granted by the town of Salem to Nicholas Patch July

, 1639,

The whole lot belonged to Mr. Pateh at the time of his
decease, in 1673; and upon the division of his real estate,

i x o T A
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iEssex Hegistry of Deeds, book §, leaf 72,
“Essex Registry of Deeds, book 9, leaf 90,
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Deg, B, 1678, between his sons John and Thomas, the
latter received this lot as his portion.! This place was
then called “the old houses,” and Thomas Patch then
lived here, in a small house. He died Sept. 28, 1711 ; and
the estate descended to his son William Pateh. William
Patch died, suddenly, Nov. 1, 1742; and the premises
descended to his son William Patch. The son William
Patch died, of small pox, in November, 1778 (being
buried en the eleventh). The title to the property them
descended to his son Robert Patch, who died Aug. 3, 1816.
The small house and land were set out, in the division of
the estate, to his daughter Molly, wife of Nathaniel Rob-
erts. How much longer the house stood has not been de-
termined.

George Standley Lot, This was probably the tract of
land granted to Ens. William Dixie at a meeting of the
pelevtmen of Salem Dec. 17, 1649 ;: which was apparently
not laid out to him until 1658, William Dicksey of Bey-
erly, for forty pounds, conveyed it to George Stanly of
Beverly Jan. 8, 16712 and Mr. Btanly owned it in 1700.

(feorge Hull Lot. This lot of land belonged to GGeorge
Hull in 1700. He probably lived here early, and when
he conveyed an undivided half of the land to his son-in-
law William Grover of Beverly, yeoman alias cordwainer,
June 5, 17222 he called it * my homestead or old honse-
lot.” Mr. Hull conveyed to Mr. Grover the other half of
“my old honse homestead ™ Feb. 26, 1728-0.¢ The house
was apparently gone before 1722,

Samuel Corning House. Ens. Samuel Corning owned
this farm in 1678 ; and he conveyed the house and barn
and twenty-four acres adjoining to his son Daniel Corning
of Beverly, husbandman alias weaver, Feb. 3, 170910,
How much longer the old house stood is unknown to the
writer,

Robert Woodbury Lot. This lot of meadow land be
longed to William Dodge, sr., very early, and to Capt.

'Essex Registry of Deeds, book 4, leaf 48.
"Essex Registry of Deeds, book 5, leaf 05.
SEssex Registry of Deeds, book 40, leaf 167.
‘Essex Registry of Deeds, book 54, leaf 40,
*Essex Registry of Deeds, book 23, leaf 233.
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Thomas Lathrop in 1673, Captain Lathrop was slain by
the Indians at Deerfield Sept. 18, 1675 ; and his only heir
was his sister Ellen (Eleanor), wife of Ezekiel Cheever,
schoolmaster, of Boston. Mr, Cheever conveyed the lot
to Thomas Woodbury of Beverly, mariner, Oct. 28, 1681;!
and Mr. Woodbury conveyed it to his brother Isanc Wood-
bury, sr., of Beverly, mariner. For love, lsaac Woodbury
eonveyed it to his son Robert Woodbury of Beverly, mar-
iner, June 8, 16987 and Robert Woodbury owned it in
1700,

Iszac Woodbury and Joshua Woodbury Lot. This lot of
meadow land was conveyed by John Pateh of Beverly,
husbandman, for eight pounds, to Capt. George Corwin of
Salem, merchant, May 8, 1675 # ancE for seven pounds
and ten shillings, Mr. Corwin conveyed it to Issac Wood-
bury of Beverly, yeoman, June 7. 168338 Mr. Woodberry,
for love, conveyed it to his sons Isane Woodberry and
Joshus Woodberry, both of Baverly, June 5, 1698 3¢ and
thev owned it in 1700.

Nathaniel Stone House, Nathaniel Stone, sr., of Bev-
erly, yeoman, owned this lot of land in 1675 and 1700,
He apparently lived here in the western house in 1700,
For love, he conveyed the house, barn and western portion
of the land to his son Daniel Stone of Beverly, husband-
man, April 20, 1708 # and Daniel Stone died possessed
of it Jan, 20, 17123, at the age of thirty-four. His
daughter Rebecca, wife of Rev. William Balch of Brad-
ford, conveyed the messuage to Ebenezer Cleaves of Bev-
erly, weaver, April 8, 17318 How much longer the bouse
stood has not been learned.

Nathaniel Stone’s son Nathaniel lived in a house which
stood on the eastern portion of the lot, probably from
1690 ; although his father did not convey the land to him
until April 20, 17087 How much longer the house stood
is unknown to the writer.

'Hssex Registry of Doeds, book 8, leaf 4.
1fssex Registry of Deeds, boolk 15, leaf 68.
“Essex Heglstry of Deeds, book 8, leat 8.
‘Essex Registry of Deesds, book 15, leal 6.
*Easex Registry of Deeds, book 20, leaf 153,
"Hssax Registry of Deeds, book 58, leaf T8,
"Essex Registry of Deeds, book 20, leaf 28.
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John Stone Let. This lot of land belonged to John
Stone in 17002

Peter Wooden House This lot of land and the house
thereon belonged to Peter Wooden in 1686 and 1608 ;
and to Jonathan Rayment of Beverly, yeoman, in 1705,
when there were a dwelling house and barn upon it. For
forty pounds, Mr. Raymond conveved the house, ha.rn
and land to Benjamin Dike of Beverly, cooper, Dee. 10,
1705 2 and Mr. Dike was killed by the Indians at Cape
Sable in Fehruary, 1723, In the appraisal of his estate
his homestead, consisting of two acres of land with the
“old Dwelling house and barn™ were valued at forty
pounds. The house probably disappeared soon afterward.

Philip Moody Howse. This lot of land may have be-
longed to Lt. John Dodge in 1686 ; and with the dwelling
house thereon it was conveyed, for sixty-four pounds, by
Thomas Edwards of Ipswich, yeoman, to Philip Moody
of Beverly Nov. 10, 1688.% Mr. Moody lived here. His
name is also called in the deeds of his time and neigh-

"There wera several lots of land in this neighborhood that were
early privately owoed, but whose exact location bhas not been de-
termined.

The town of Salem, at 3 meeting of the selectmen, Jan, 37, 1682,

nted t0 Thomas Pickton of Salem, husbandman, ten scres of
nd; and two seres of land were added to it by the town of Beverly
Dec. 18, 1688, For ten pounds, Mr. Pickton of Beverly conveyed it
to Charles Kimball of Hull March 19, 1074 { Essex Registry of Deeds,
book 4, leaf 61): and Mr. Kimball owned it in 1670,

Richard Dodge, sr., of Wenham, yéoman, for twenty.five poands,
conveyed ten acres of upland and swamp to Joseph Dodge of Bev-
ﬁ yeomsn, March 8, 1688-4 (Essex Hegistry of Deeds, book 10,

Jnuihu Biles of Heverly, carpemter, conveyed m%ht acres of
Iand to Richard Ober of Beverly, seaman, March 8, 1 and Mr,
Obar exchan it with the town of Beverly Feb. 1, 1857-8 { Essex
l!.flhr of Desds, book 6, leaf 53).

small lot of land there 'bqlun;nd to John Galley quite early and
to Josaph Eaton In 1603,

The town of Bm:r grantad sight acres of Jand to John Galley
May 25, 1872; and be died possessed of it;and his iuu in-law William
Hore, sr., of H-"qrt]q for sighteen pounds, conve it to Timothy
ﬂzili:"ll] ﬂ.gnlnm merchant, Sept 22, 1686 {m:ll:wutq

A lot of elhghl neres of land was granted and lald out to Bobert
Morgan by the town of Beverly May 25, 1672,

TEssox Registry of Deeds, book 33, leaf 245,

‘Essex Registry of Deeds, book 17, leaf 112.
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borhood Gody, Lagoedy, Codie, Lecodie and Nagode.
Philip Gody of Beverly, weaver, conveyed the d
house and land to Daniel Buckman of Wenham,
wainer, March 15, 1722-3;! and the latter removed to
this house, and lived here. He conveyed the house and
land to Josiash Woodbury of Beverly, yeoman, Jan. 15,
1784-63 How muech longer the house stood is unknown
to the writer.

Thomas Edwards Lot. This tract of land may have
belonged to Lt. John Dodge in 1686. It was owned by
Thomas Edwards of Ipswich, yeoman, in 1698 and 1700.

'Essex Hagistry of Desds, book 41, leaf 218,
TEssex B.ugﬁltg of Deeds, book 09, leaf 33.



